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March 11, 2025 

Christopher Fry 
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25090 W. 100th Terrace 
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NOTICE OF PENALTY ORDER 
25-DPAX-311-PEN 

Phone: 785-271-3100 
Fax: 785-271-3354 

http://kcc.ks.gov/ 

Laura Kelly, Go\'ernor 

This is a notice of a penalty assessment against Atmos Energy Corporation ("Atmos") for a 
violation of the Kansas Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act ("KUUDPA") and pipeline 
safety regulations adopted by the Kansas Corporation Commission. Atmos has bene assessed a 
civil penalty in the amount of $8,000. For a full description of the penalty, please refer to the 
Penalty Order attached to this notice. 

IF YOU ACCEPT THE PENALTY: You have twenty (20) days from the date of service of the 
Penalty Order to pay the penalty. Payments shall be made payable to the Kansas Corporation 
Commission and mailed to the Fiscal Division of the Kansas Corporation Commission, 1500 S.W. 
Arrowhead Road, Topeka, Kansas, 66604 and shall include a reference to Docket Number 25-
DPAX-311-PEN. 

IF YOU CONTEST THE PENALTY: You have the right to request a hearing to challenge 
the Penalty Order. A request for hearing must be made in writing, setting forth the specific 
grounds upon which relief is sought. You or an authorized representative of Atmos may 
electronically file its request for hearing within fifteen (15) days from the date of service of the 
Penalty Order. A copy of the request for hearing must be provided to the Litigation Counsel listed 
below. 

IF YOU FAIL TO ACT: Pursuant to K.A.R. 82-l 4-6(i), failure to submit a written request for a 
hearing within fifteen (15) days from the date of service of the Penalty Order will be considered 
an admission ofnoncompliance. Failing to request a hearing or to pay the civil assessment may 
result in further penalties. 

Respectfully, 
I~ I .M.acJMen Jc. 9lmre 
Madisen K. Hane, S. Ct. No. 30292 
Litigation Counsel 
(785) 271-3288 
Madisen.Hane(Zi),ks.uov 

20250311104015 
Kansas Corporation 

Commission 



THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF KANSAS 

Before Commissioners: Andrew J. French, Chairperson 
Dwight D. Keen 
Annie Kuether 

In the Matter of the Investigation of Atmos ) 
Energy Regarding Violations of the Kansas ) 
Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act ) 
("KUUDPA") (K.S.A. 66-1801,et seq., and ) Docket No. 25-DPAX-311-PEN 
K.A.R. 82-14-1 through 82-14-5), and the ) 
Commission's Authority to Impose Penalties ) 
and/or Sanctions (K. S.A. 66-1, 151 ). ) 

PENALTY ORDER 

The above-captioned matter comes before the State Corporation Commission of the State 

of Kansas ("Commission") for consideration and determination. Having examined its files and 

records, the Commission finds and concludes: 

I. JURISDICTION 

1. The Commission has jurisdiction to administer and enforce the Kansas 

Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act ("KUUDPA"), as provided in K.S.A. 66-1801, et 

seq. 1 The Commission has full power and authority to adopt all necessary rules and regulations for 

carrying out the provisions of the KUUDPA, including imposing civil penalties and injunctive 

relief against any person or entity subject to and found in violation of the KUUDPA, or any rule, 

regulation, or order of the Commission. 2 

2. Atmos Energy Corporation ("Atmos") operates as a natural gas public utility 

pursuant to Commission-issued certificates of convenience and necessity. 3 

1 See KS.A. 66-1813. 
2 See KS.A. 66-1812 and KS.A. 66-1815. 
3 See KS.A. 66-1,200. 
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3. Atmos is a statutorily defined Operator who owns or leases underground Tier 1 

facilities, as defined in K.S.A. 66-l 802(k) and (q).4 Pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1813, which authorizes 

the Commission to administer and enforce the KUUDPA, Atmos is subject to the Commission's 

jurisdiction regarding compliance with the KUUDPA's obligations (e.g., K.S.A. 66-1806) and may 

be subject to penalties and injunctive relief issued pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1812. 

II. NONCOMPLIANCE 

4. Between March 2024 and December 2024, Commission Staff ("Staff') conducted 

multiple on site investigations of the excavation operations of Atmos in Northeast Kansas. Eight 

(8) instances of damage were discovered in total: one on March 5, 2024, one on July 8, 2024, one 

on August 22, 2024, one on September 9, 2024, one on October 9, 2024, one on November 20, 

2024, one on November 27, 2024, and one on December 26, 2024. 

5. Staff subsequently issued Notices of Probable Noncompliance ("PNCs") to Atmos 

for each of the above-described instances notifying Atmos of the results of Staff's investigation, 

copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein Exhibit 1. 

6. Atmos responded to all eight of the PNCs as required by K.A.R. 82-14-6( c) which 

are also included in Exhibit 1 to this order. Atmos 's responses did not dispute Staff's allegations 

as to the violations of the KUUDPA nor the violations of 49 C.F.R. 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 

82-11-4. 

7. On February 3, 2025, Staff submitted a Report and Recommendation ("R&R'') 

which is made a part hereof and incorporated by reference herein as Attachment A. 5 Staff 

4 KS.A. 66-l 802(k) defines "operator" as "any person who owns or leases underground tier I or tier 2 facility ... "; 
KS.A. 66-l 802(q) defines "Tier I facility'' as "an underground facility used for transpo1ting, gathering, st01ing, 
conveying, transmitting, or distributing gas, electricity, communications, crude oil, refined orreprocessed petroleum, 
petroleum products, or hazardous liquids." 
5 Repo1t and Recommendation, Utilities Division, DocketNo.25-DPAX-311-PEN (Feb. 3,2025)("Staff's R&R"or 
"R&R"). 
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recommended that the Commission find thatAtmos was directly responsible for failing to provide 

timely and accurate locates as required by K.S.A. 66-l 806(a) on eight (8) separate occasions.6 

Furthermore, Staff recommended that the Commission find thatAtmos is responsible for ensuring 

its staff follows the required Atmos operations and maintenance procedures required by pipeline 

safety regulations, specifically 49 C.F.R. 192.605(a) and 49 C.F.R. l 92.614(a), as adopted in 

Kansas by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 7 The relevant Atmos operations and maintenance procedures are 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit 2. 

III. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

8. The Commission finds it has full power and authority under K.S.A. 66-1815(a) to 

adopt all necessary rules and regulations for carrying out the provisions of the KUUDPA. 

9. The Commission finds that during the incidents at issue, Atmos was acting as an 

Operator of a Tier 1 facility, as defined in K.S.A. 66-1802(k) and ( q). 

10. The Commission finds that, pursuant to K.A.R. 82-14-6(a), Staff was authorized to 

serve a PNC after Staff investigate Atmos regarding damage to gas service lines and gas main 

lines. 

11. The Commission finds that Atmos violated Kansas law governing underground 

utilities, including provisions of the KUUDPA and the Commission's pipeline safety regulations, 

as described above, and is therefore subject to sanctions or fines imposed by the Commission. 

Specifically, the Commission finds that Atmos failed to comply with K.S.A. 66-1806(a) for the 

above-listed incidents. 

6 Id. at p. 1; KS.A 66-l 802(t) defines"tolerancezone"as "the areanotmorethan 24 inchesofthe outside dimensions 
in all horizontal directions ofan underground facility ... ". 
7 Staff's R&R, p. 3. 
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12. The Commission finds that Atmos is responsible for ensuring its staff and 

contractors follow the required operations and maintenance procedures required by federal 

pipeline safety regulations,specifically49C.F.R. 192. 605(a)and49 C.F.R. l 92.614(a), as adopted 

in Kansas by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 

13. The Commission finds that the penalty amount recommended by Staff is necessary 

to correct Atmos' violations. 

14. The Commission concludes that Atmos violatedK.S.A. 66-1806(a), and that Staffs 

recommendation that Atmos be assessed a $8,000 civil penalty is just and reasonable. 

IT IS, THEREFORE, BY THE COMMISSION ORDERED THAT: 

A. Atmos Energy Corporation is hereby assessed a $8,000 civil penalty for four (4) 

violations of the Kansas Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act, K.S.A. 66-1801, et seq. 

B. Pursuantto K.A.R. 82-14-60), Atmos may request a hearing by electronically filing 

its request for hearing within fifteen (15) days from the date of service of this Penalty Order, and 

emailing or mailing a copy of the request for hearing to the Litigation Counsel listed on the Notice 

of Penalty Assessment. Hearings will be scheduled only upon written request. Failure to timely 

request a hearing shall be considered an admission ofnoncompliance allegations contained herein 

and result in a waiver of Atmos' right to a hearing. A request for hearing must comply with the 

provisions ofK.A.R. 82-1-232(b). Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with K.A.R. 82-1-

230. 

C. Attorneys for all parties shall enter their appearances in Commission proceedings 

by giving their names and addresses for the record. For civil penalties exceeding $500, a 

corporation shall appear before the Commission by its attorney, unless waived by the Commission 
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for good cause shown and a determination that such waiver is in the public interest. See K.S.A. 

77-515(c); K.A.R. 82-1-228(d)(2); K.A.R. 82-l-202(a). 

D. Pursuantto K.A.R. 82-14-6, if Atmos does notrequesta hearing, thepaymentof 

the civil penalty is due in twenty (20) days from the date of service of this Order. Checks shall be 

made payable to the Kansas Corporation Commission. Payments shall be mailed to the Fiscal 

Division of the Kansas Corporation Commission, 1500 S.W. Arrowhead Road, Topeka, Kansas 

66604. The payment shall include a reference to the docket number (25-DPAX-311-PEN) of this 

proceeding. 

E. Unless a hearing is requested, failure to pay the $8,000 civil penalty within twenty 

(20) days from the date of service of this Penalty Order will result in further enforcement actions 

against Atmos including all sanctions, requirements, and penalties described above being 

enforceable without further action by the Commission. 

BY THE COMMISSION IT IS SO ORDERED. 

French, Chairperson; Keen, Commissioner; Kuether, Commissioner 

Dated: ------------------

Abigail D. Emery 
Acting Secretary to the Commission 

MKH 
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1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604-4027 

Andrew J. frcnch, Chairperson 
Dwight D. Keen, Commissioner 
Annie Kuether, Commissioner 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION 
UTILITIES DIVISION 

TO: Chairperson Andrew J. French 
Commissioner Dwight D. Keen 
Commissioner Annie Kuether 

FROM: Suzanne Balandran, Public Service Administrator 
Paul Owings, Chief of Pipeline Safety 
JeffMcClanahan, Director of Utilities 

DATE: February 3, 2025 

SUBJECT: Docket Number: _________________ _ 

Phone: 785-271-3100 
Fax: 785-271-3354 

http://kcc.ks.gov/ 

Laura Kelly, Governor 

In the Matter of the Investigation of Atmos Energy Regarding Violations of the 
Kansas Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act (KUUDPA) (K.S.A. 66-
1801, et seq., and K.A.R. 82-14-1 through 82-14-5), and the Commission's 
Authority to Impose Penalties and/or Sanctions (K.S.A. 66-1,151). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Staff is recommending a civil penalty be issued to Atmos Energy (Atmos) in the amount of $8,000 
for eight violations of the Kansas Underground Damage Prevention Act (KUUDPA) and Kansas 
pipeline safety regulation that occurred between March and December 2024. The penalty is based 
on results of Staff investigations following eight damages to Atmos natural gas lines in northeast 
Kansas. 

Failure to provide the excavator with the location of the tolerance zone of the buried facility before 
excavation begins is a violation of KUUDPA statute, K.S.A. 66-1806 (a). Failure to follow a 
written procedure as required by pipeline safety regulations is a violation of Federal Pipeline 
Safety regulations, specifically 49 C.F.R. 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4. For natural gas 
utilities, failure to comply with K.S.A.66-1806 is also a violation of Kansas Pipeline Safety 
Regulations. Staff recommends enforcement of violations of the Pipeline Safety Regulations and 
KUUDP A to encourage natural gas operators to improve the effectiveness of existing safety 
procedures and minimize future damages to Kansas pipelines. 



BACKGROUND: 

Atmos's failure to provide timely locates when requested resulted in damages to its natural gas 
facilities, lost work time for the excavators who had to wait for the locates, and lost work time for 
the excavators that damaged the lines. No injuries or propetiy damage occurred as a result of these 
damages. The table provides the date of the pipeline damage, the type of facility damaged, the 
city where the damage occurred, and Staffs assertion of the cause of the violation. 

Upon completing investigations into the damages, Staff issued Notices of Probable 
Noncompliance (PNC) to Atmos for each of the above listed violations. Atmos has responded to 
all eight PNCs as required by K.A.R. 82-14-6(c). Atmos does not dispute Staffs allegations as to 
the violation ofKUUDPA, and the violations of 49 C.F.R. 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-
4. A summary description of Staffs findings, Atmos's response for each PNC and the actions 
purportedly taken by Atmos in response to prevent reoccurrence of the violation are included as 
Attachment 1. 

I Type of Facility City Damage 
Case# Date of Damage Affected Occurred Root Cause Code Violated Penalty Amt. 

AR-24-OC-1038 7/8/2024 Service Olathe not marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

AR-24-OC-1076 8/22/2024 main Independence Not Marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

AR-24-OC-1085 9/9/2024 service Eudora not marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

AR-24-OC-1107 10/8/2024 Service Fulton not marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

AR-24-OC-1139 11/20/2024 Service Olathe not marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

AR-24-OC-1146 11/27/2024 Service Olathe Not Marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

AR-24-OC-1163 12/26/2024 Service Marion Not Marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

CK-24-OC-1026 3/5/2024 Service Olathe Not Marked 192.614(a) $1,000 

I TOTAL $8,000 

ANALYSIS: 

Rationale for Penalties: 

A. Gravity of noncompliance: 

Once an excavator notifies underground utility operators of a planned excavation, each 
operator, with facilities buried at that site, must provide surface markings that indicate 
where the utilities are located within 24 inches of either side of the position of the buried 
facility. This area is called the "tolerance zone." In response to the above listed PNCs, 
Atmos admitted the buried gas service and main lines were not located. Attachment 1 
summarizes the nature of each violation and cross references the attachment with Atmos' s 
specific response. Atmos Damage Prevention Program procedure provides direction for 
Atmos to receive and handle line locate tickets, locating practices to be followed, and 
direction for locate performance monitoring. The relevant Atmos procedures are attached 
hereto as Attachment 2. 

Based on the evidence, Staff concludes the failure by Atmos to provide timely and accurate 
locates demonstrates a failure of Atmos to follow its Damage Prevention Program, Chapter 



3, which directs Atmos to locate its gas facilities within two full working days after being 
notified on an intent to excavate. 

B. Culpability: 

Atmos is directly responsible for its actions in failing to provide accurate and timely locates 
as required in K.S.A. 66-l 806(a). Furthermore, Atmos is responsible for ensuring its staff 
follow the required Atmos operations and maintenance procedures required by pipeline 
safety regulations specifically 49 C.F.R. l 92.605(a) as adopted by Kansas in K.A.R. 88-
11-4. 

C. History of noncompliance: 

Staff has issued a total of 62 KUUDPA PNCs to Atmos in the years 2021, 2022 and to the 
present. These violations were for failure to locate or failure to provide accurate locates. 

D. Response of the utility operator regarding noncompliance(s): 

Atmos responded to each of the PNCs as required by K.A.R. 82-14-6(c) and agreed with 
Staff's allegations as to the causes of the damages. Atmos personnel failed to follow the 
procedures provided by the excavator and Atmos, which resulted in the facilities not being 
located. Atmos has reviewed each PNC and agrees with Staffs assessment of the cause of 
the damage. 

E. Aggravating/Mitigating Circumstances: 

Staff has not determined any circumstances that would cause modification of the 
recommended penalty amount of$8,000. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends a civil penalty be issued to Atmos Energy in the amount of $8,000 for eight 
violations of 49 C.F .R. 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 

Attachments 



EXHIBIT 1 



Leo Haynos 
Chief of Pipeline Safoty 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Leo, 

Attachment 1 

energy 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC-1038. Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage and worked onsite with 
the Commission Staff in that investigation. The following are the facts and determinations of that 
investigation. 

On July 8, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos Energy service technician 
completed locate ticket number 24340273 which was for fiber main install. The service line 
involved went to a maintenance building and this line was not shovm on our electronic mapping. 
The service technician failed to recognize that this building had a meter and cleared the location 
of work for the contractor. 

The technician was coached on site to do a visual walk around all structures to verify that no 
buildings have a service line. The service technician was also advised to call additional resources 
or dispatch to see if we have an active account on unknown structures. We have added this service 
line to our electronic mapping, and additional GPS points were collected to identify the existing 
pipe/fittings as well for future locating accuracy. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher Fry 
Damage Prevention Manager 



[ . l'ROHAHU:NONCOMPLIANCE. lnvestigution: AR-24-OC-10:38 

Company; Almos Energy 

Regulation: 

192,61-1 Dn01a.~t' prevention JJrugrnm. 

Division: One Call 

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (ll) antl (e) of 01[s scdion, each opcrntor of i\ buried pipeline must curry out, in accordance with thi, ~cc!ic1J, tl 

\\'rillcn progrnm to pr~vcnt damage to that pipeline from excavation activities, For lhc 1n1rpo~c oflhi!i section, th~ lem1 1
''

1cxtavaeion nctivilies:"" 
Includes excavation, blasting, boring, tunnolitlg, backlilling, the removal of aboveground slruclurcs. by eilhcr explosive or mechanical means, and 
olher earlhmoving opt-'!alions, 

PROHABU; NONCOMPLIANCE DESCRIPTION: 

011 07/08/2024,, Lincoln Underground damaged a Atmos I" PE natural gas service line near the intersection of 
108th Sh·cet and South Elm Street. One Call Uckct#2434,0273 had a work to begin dale of07/06/2024. The Atmos 
fadlitlcs were not marl<cd nccordlng to the rc11ucsted 11rc11 and the lkkct lndltntcd the 11reu was 11111rkctl ns 
"Clear/No ConOict". Atmos did not follow llie p1·occdurc Atmos O&M 3.4.1 which directs Atmos to locate its gas 
facilities within the time allowtd by the state damage 11rcvc11Uon laws (2 full business dnys). Failure to follow the 
written procedure is a violation of 49 CFR 192.6M ns i1do111ed by K.A,R. 82-11-4. 

OPERA TOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach verification if needed) 

PIPELINE SAFETY USE ONLY: 

Dute reviewed: Dale reviewed: 

Chief: Inspector: 

Date; 7 //.r/ .2-V 

Inspection Type: One Call Inquiry/Complaint 

Date Inspected: 07/0812024 

Inspc<:led By; AR 

I 



Paul Owings 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Paul, 

energy 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC- l 076 Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage. The following are the 
facts and determinations of that investigation. 

On August 20, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos Energy service technician 
completed locate ticket number 24428346 which was 275 feet along E. Laurel Street. This was 
part of an ongoing fiber project. The technician marked 170 feet of main going from N. 4th street 
east down the south side of Laurel Street. After the damage investigation, it was determined that 
the technician did not locate the full scope of the dig boundary. This resulted in a 3-inch main 
being hit and damaged. 

The technician was coached on site to verify the locate parameters and to make sure the 
technician locates the entire scope of the ticket. A plus delta discussion was also completed on 
August 30, 2024, to discuss the damage with leadership and employees involved with damage. 
We have also gathered additional GPS information for our electronic mapping. The 3-inch main 
can now be located from both the regulator setting and the meter coming off the main 

Chris Fry 
Damage Prevention Manger 



PRO HABLE NONCOM PLlANqL_:_] Investigation: AR-24-OC-l 076 

Company: Atmos Energy Division: One Call 

Regulation: 

192.614 Damage prevention program, 

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, each operator of a buried pipeline rnust carry out, in accordance with this section, a 
written program lo prevent damage to that pipeline from excavation activities. For the purpose of this section, the term ""excavation activities"" 
includes excavation, blasting, boring, tunneling, backfilling, the removal of aboveground structures by either explosive or mechanical means, and 
other earthmoving operations. 

PROBABLE NONCOMPLIANCE DESCRIPTION: 

On 08/22/2024, Martin Underground damaged a Atmos 3" PE natural gas main line near the intersection of North 
4th Street and East Laurel Street. One Call ticket #24393202 had a work to begin date of 08/05/2024. The Atmos 3" 
natural gas main was not located prior to the damage. Atmos did not follow the procedure Atmos O&M 3.4.l 
which directs Atmos to locate its gas facilities within the time allowed by the state damage prevention laws (2 full 
business days). Failure to follow the written procedure is a violation of 49 CFR 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 
82-11-4. 

OPERATOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach verification if needed) 

,~~ 
Operator's Authorized Signature: _L:6~·c..-_z...,..~-=----__ 5_,,,.c:"'------------- Date: _9_-_1_7_-_.2._1/ ____ _ 

PJPELfNE SAFETY USE ONLY: 

Date reviewed: 

Chief: 

Date reviewed: 

Inspector: 

Inspection Type: One Call Inquiry/Complaint 

Date Inspected: 08/23/2024 

Inspected By: AR 



Paul Owings 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Paul, 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC-l 085. Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage and worked onsite with 
the Commission Staff in that investigation. The following are the facts and determinations of that 
investigation. 

On September 9, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos damage prevention 
technician completed locate ticket number 24450203 which was 1 J 00 feet for fiber install. This is 
a small portion of tickets called in for fiber installation for the whole town of Eudora. The service 
line involved went to a duplex and the gate was locked. The damaged prevention technician failed 
to gain access and also failed to let the contractor know, this resulted in the service line being 
damaged. 

The technician was coached on site to verify that all mains and services are marked prior to 
closing a ticket out. If we have issues gaining access to locate our facilities, we need to document 
properly and take escalated actions. Additional OPS points were collected to identify the existing 
pipe/fittings as well for future locate accuracy. Our electronic mapping has been updated. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher Fry 
Damage Prevention Manager 



(-· l'ROnAHLE NONCOMPLIANCE • • j Investigation: AR-24-0C-1085 

Company: Atmos Energy 

Regulation: 

192,614 Damage prevention program. 

Division: One Call 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph, (d) and (c) of this section, ench operator ufn buried pipeline must cnrry out, in accatdance with this section, a 
wriHcn program lo prevent damage to lhal pipeline from excava1ion activities. for lhe purpose oftllis section, the term '111excavation aclivitics"11 

includes excavation, blosling, boring, tunneling, backfilling, the removal of aboveground stntctures by either explosive or mechanical means, and 
other eMhmoving operations. 

PROBABLE NONCOMPLIANCE DESCRIPTION: 

On 09/09/20241 We Work LLC dnnmgcd an Atmos 3/4" PE nuturul gns service line nt 410 East 13th Street. One 
Cnll tkkct #24450230 h11d n work to begin tlntc of09/05/2024. The Atmos 3/4" naturnl gns scrvku line wns 1101 
located 11rlor to the dnmagc, Atmos did not follow the procedure Atmos O&M 3.4.1 which directs Atmos lo locntc 
Us gns fncllltles within the time 11llowed by the slate dn11111gc prevention lnws (2 full business days). Fallurn to follow 
lhc wl'itten procedure is n violation of 49 CFR 192.614 as ado11tctl by K.A.R. 112-1 J,4. 

OPERATOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach verification if needed) 

Operator's Authorized Signature: ~~ ~ 

PIPBLINE SAFETY USE ONLY: 

Date reviewed: Date reviewed: 

Chic::.'.f;-======::_ ___ _:I.::ns:'.:·pc::..::c.::to::.'.r:-=====-_J 

Inspection Type: One Call [nquiry/Complalnt 

Date Inspected: 09/l 112024 

lt18µectcd Dy: AR 



Paul Owings 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Paul, 

energy 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC-1107. Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage and worked onsite with 
the Commission Staff in that investigation. The following are the facts and detem1inations of that 
investigation. 

On October 8, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos Distribution Operator 
completed locate ticket number 24511833 which was 2400 feet for fiber installation. This is a 
small portion of tickets called in for fiber installation for the whole town of Fulton. The service 
line involved in the damage did not currently supply gas to any structure and was not on our 
electronic mapping. This resulted in the service line not being marked and being damaged. 

Since the damage occurred, we have had the service line killed at the main. Additional GPS 
points were collected to identify the existing pipe/fittings as well for future locate accuracy. Our 
electronic mapping has been updated. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher Fry 
Damage Prevention Manager 



r-l'ROIIABLI~ NONCOMl'l,IANCI{·~ I Investigation: AR-24·OC-ll 07 

Company: Atmos Energy 

Regulation: 

192.614 Dnmage prevention progrnm, 

Division: One Cnll 

(a) Bxccpl as provided in paragraphs (d) and (c) of this section, each opcrntllr of n buried pipeline must carry out, in accordance with this section, n 
written program to prevent damage lo thul pipeline frnm excavation activities. For the purpose of this section, the term ""excavation activiticf'" 
includes c,cavation, blasting, boring, tunneling, backftlliog, the removal of aboveground structures by either explosive or mechanical means, and 
other ca~hmoving operations. 

PROBABLE NONCOMPLIANCE DESCRIPTION: 

On 10/08/2024, Plus 3 LLC damngcd nn Atmos 3/4" PE nntnrnl gos srrvice line at 122 Ced Ar Street. One Call tlcke! 
#24511833 had a work to begin dato of 10/04/2024. The Atmos 3/4" naturnl gas service line was not located prior lo 
the damage. Atmos did not follow the procedure Atmos O&M 3.4.1 which directs Almos to locate its gas fncilitics 
within the time allowed by the state damage prevention laws (2 full business days), Failure to follow the written 
procedure is a violation of 49 CFR l 92.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 

OPERATOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach verification if needed) 

Operator's Authorized Si1,•1mture: U:::: 9 ;;/2,. ..-:::::::::::= 

PIPELINE SAFETY USli ONLY; 
Date reviewed: 

Chief: 

Date reviewed: 

lnspeclor: ___ _ 

Inspection Twc; One Call Inquir)'/Complnint 

Dale Inspected: I 0/0812024 

Inspected Oy: AR 



Paul Owings 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Paul, 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC-1139. Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage and worked onsite with 
the Commission Staff in that investigation. The following are the facts and determinations of that 
investigation. 

On November 20, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos damage prevention 
technician completed locate ticket number 24577099 which was for patio installation. The 
damage prevention technician marked the yard line from the meter to the back of the house. The 
technician's tone stopped 1 foot from foundation wall, and the technician assumed it was below 
grade entry and marked it going into foundation. The yard line had been replaced at some point 
and turned at the wall and ran around to the side of the house to the entry point. This resulted in a 
portion of the yard line not being marked and resulted in the line being damaged. 

The technician was coached to reach out to damage prevention specialists if they have issues or 
questions on a difficult locate. The technician was also coached on making sure if it is a below or 
above grade entry. The meter has been moved to the house with a new service line and tracer 
wire. Our electronic mapping has been updated. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher Fry 
Damage Prevention Manager 



• ruonAm,r~ NON(:OMl'Llt\NCI~ • I I nvesligation; AR ·24-OC· l l:l9 

Compuny: Atmos Energy Oivi5ion: One Call 

Rcgulalion: 

192.614 Dameg< pre,·cntlon program. 

(a) llxcept as provided in paragrnphs (d) nnd (e) of this :section, each opera.tor vf a buried pipeline must cany out, in accordance with this scetion, J. 

wd!lcn program lo prevent damage to lhat pipeline from excavation activities. For !he purpose of this sec1ion, the tcm1 '" 1cxc:wation ac<ivilies:"" 
i11dm.lcs cxcavntiou, blasting, boring, lunncHng, bBckfilling, lh::: rcnwval of 11Uovcgn1tmd sttvclurt.'5 by either explosive or nicthunic-al n1c-:.11is, and 
other earthmoving operations, 

PROBAill,E NONCOMPLIANCE DESCRIPTION: 

On 11/20/2024, the Lillis Outdoors damaged an Atmos 1" PE natural gas service line at 15608 West 126th Terrace 
in Olathe, Kansas. 'l'he natural gas service line was bit with a grader while doing II patio installation. One Call tkkcl 
#24577099 had n work to begin date of 11/11/24. Marks were present but were off 11pproxim11tely 15 feet. Atmos did 
not follow the procedure Atmos O&M 3.4.1 and is ln violation of 49 CI•'R 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 82,11•4, 

OPERATOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach verification lfneeded) 

,,-~ ~ / 
Operator's Aulhorizcd Signature: -~ • .cZ"-"'":,..,r"'~_...-?-___________ _ 

PIPRLINB SAFETY USll ONLY: 

Date reviewed: 

Chief: 

Date reviewed: 

lnspeclor: 

Inspection Tyµc: One C,iH Inquiry/Complaint 

Date lnspcclcd; 11/20/2024 

Inspected Dy: AR 



Paul Owings 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Paul, 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC-1146. Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage and worked onsite with 
the Commission Staff in that investigation. The following are the facts and determinations of that 
investigation. 

On November 27, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos service technician 
completed locate ticket number 24605541 which was for foundation repair. The service 
technician did not locate the yard line due to marking the wrong address and closing out the 
incorrect ticket, this resulted in the yard line being damaged. The technician verified that the 
incorrect ticket was closed out and that the location for the ticket was not marked. 

The technician was coached to verify the location of every ticket before and after completion to 
ensure that the job was marked correctly and correct location. After the damage occurred, we 
relocated the meter to the house and installed a new service line and our electronic mapping has 
been updated. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher Fry 
Damage Prevention Manager 



Paul Owings 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Paul, 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. AR-24-OC-1163 Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage. The following are the 
facts and determinations of that investigation. 

On December 26, 2024, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos Energy service technician 
completed locate ticket number 24651521 for an ongoing fiber project which was 305 feet East 
along Weldon Street and 253 feet South along Lincoln Street. The technician marked all of the 
mains within the scope of the ticket but failed to mark the service line going to 211 South 
Lincoln Street. The fiber crew hit the unmarked service line. 

The technician was coached on site to verify all locating hook up points, service/yard lines and to 
make sure they locate all underground lines within the scope of the ticket. We have a plus delta 
discussion scheduled for January 13, 2024, to discuss the damage with leadership and employees 
involved with damage prevention. We also gathered additional GPS information for our 
electronic mapping. 

Chris Fry 
Damage Prevention Manger 



Company: Atmos Energy 

Regulation: 

192.614 Damage prevention program. 

Investigation: AR-24-OC-1163 

Division: One Call 

(a) Except ns provided in paragraphs (d) and (c) of this section, each operator of a buried pipeline must carry out, in accordance with ihis section, a 
written program to prevent damage to that pipeline from excavation activities. For the purpose of this section, the tcnn ""excavation activities"" 
includes excavation, blasting, boring, tunneling, backfilling, the removal of aboveground structures by either explosive or mechanical means, and 
other earthmoving operations. 

PROBABLE NONCOMPLIANCE DESCRIPTION: 

On 12/26/2024, RLM Underground damaged an Atmos 1.25" PE natural gas service line at 211 South Lincoln in 
Marion, Kansas. The natural gas service line was hit with a directional while installing fiber for ldeatek. One Call 
ticket #24651521 had a work to begin date of 12/25/24. The Atmos service line was not marked. Atmos did not 
follow the procedure Atmos O&M 3.4.1 and is in violation of 49 CFR 192.614 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 

OPERATOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach verification if needed) 

PIPELINE SAFETY USE ONLY: 

Date reviewed: Date reviewed: 

Chief: Inspector: 

Date: /-/ J-2J' 

Inspection Type: One Call Inquiry/Complaint 

Date Inspected: 12/30/2024 

Inspected By: AR 



Leo Haynos 
Chief of Pipeline Safety 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 SW Atmwhead Road 
Topeka, KS 66604 

Dear Leo, 

energy 

This letter is in response to Probable Noncompliance Investigation No. CK-24-OC-1026. Atmos 
Energy has conducted an internal investigation of this third-party damage and worked onsite with 
the Commission Staff in that investigation. The following arc the facts and determinations of that 
investigation. 

On March 5, 2023, an experienced and operator-qualified Atmos Energy service technician 
completed locate ticket number 24076451 which was one of several tickets relating to a fiber 
installation project. The service technician was updating the marks for this prqject. The service 
line that was damaged went to a commercial building and was missed in the process of updating 
the marks for this project. 

The technician was coached on site to identify all services and mains on our mapping prior to 
marking for projects. The technician was also coached on the process of updating tickets, that we 
are required to remark and flag all of our facilities within the scope of the locate ticket. Since the 
damage occurred, the service line has been added to our electronic mapping. Additional GPS 
points were collected to identify the existing pipe/fittings as well for future locate accuracy. 

Christopher Fry 
Damage Prevention Manager 



Company; Atmoa< Energy 

Regulation: 

{92,614 J)umagc pn~vcnllou prognun. 

l)ivision: One Call 

(:11 h:::x:i)l ;I" p1m·1dcli i11 p:1;a;:rnph\ (d) ,md (() or tltl,; (1'1:ti~)!\, e-:H.:h H[li..'.!J{(it \tr;\ !)ll:id piµc·lin,; \1HF,! tW!} Pt!!, in ;1t<:0Hian•.;:¢ W\\h tl1i, :;n:nnn. tt 

~v1 int!\ tJi<)i!i,t!H \ii jil(\::1n d;1.:nagc rn lh:\l pi/chnc frnn1 c\:..::i 1::1h,:in ,\C!i•/1,,,-.; hir th~ pnip1;:,,,.;: ofilti;;_ ·,~·r1i1i1\ \he t-.;n:\ • \.\C1\·,;001i 

i:Jd,:1k, nnvntinu, bln:;i\llp., bmt!lfl, h1i\!lt\ing, b:1d:hHing, !hv r,~mnqi '.![ :i\;1;v,:g1rnn1d :-:tn1ctt1,~''> by 1,:;!hn cxp\()::.:\·.,; n! :r,:•d1:1mb\\ 

\)\ln'r (',Jili\1j)ti',,•j1Jg •Jjh';';\I\OW, 

P!Wl!ABLE \ONCOMPLIANCE DESClHPTlON: 

On 3i5/2024, KCC Staff was no lilied of excavuliou work rrsul!ini: in a dnm111ic to an Atmos gas line a1·01111d the oren 
of l:'-707 S i\lahuffic SI in Olntltc, I<ansos. KCC alleges YM l'arndisc, LLC damaged an Atmos 1-1/4" PE gas 
s~nicc line while directional drilling conduit for ATT. There was a valid One-Call ticket 1/24076451 with a due date 
of 2123/2024. There were locates prusent; however, there were no murks on thb s~rvice line. Atmos did not follow 
the prnccdurc Atmos O&M 3.4. t and is in violation of 49 CFR 192.614 as adoplcd by K.A.lt 82-11-4. 

OPERATOR'S RESPONSE: (Attach vcrificntion if needed) 

l'lPl:LINI: SAFE i Y USE ONLY: 

ChicL !mpcctor: 

4/4/2024 

ln'ip~~l!(H1 Typl.':: Om.· Culi (nqu!ryl(\>mpl.1i11t 

llllic l,i;pc•cid. 0-1til50M-1 

bwcctni By: CK 



EXHIBIT 2 



Attachment 2 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
Reference: 192.614, 2020 PIPES Act Section 114 
OSHA Link: N/A 

energ~ 
Chapter 3: Damage Prevention Program 

IV. Pipeline Marking 

3.4.1 Pipeline Location Marking 
Underground pipelines and facilities shall be located within the time allowed by 
the state damage prevention laws. Any locating equipment used should be used in 
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. 

The location will be marked by spraying with yellow paint, or the installation of 
stakes, flags or other approved marking methods. 

It will be stated in annual letters and personal contacts with excavators that the 
markings represent only approximate horizontal positions of the facility. To 
verify the precise location, the pipeline and facilities should be exposed by hand 
digging within a tolerance zone as required by state damage prevention laws. 

The American Public Works Association (APWA) Uniform Color Code (ANSI 
Standard Z535 .1, Safety Color Code marking colors for utilities are as follows: 

Safety Yellow Gas or Oil Pipelines 
Safety Blue Water Systems 
Safety Green Sewer Systems 
Safety Red Electrical Power 
Safety Orange Communications Systems 
Safety White Excavation 

Each appropriate supervisor or manager is responsible for maintenance of records. 

St<lte Specific - Kansas 
Kansas-lvfarking Underground PE Facilities Using As-built Drawings. 

rVhen a segment of PE main, greater than 2" in size, consistent(v requires the 
Field locator, whether it is a contracted locating service or Atmos Energy 
Corporation personnel, to use as-built facility construction drawings to mark the 
Facility location, then the following procedure shall be followed: 
1) Notffication shall be made to the designated person in each Atmos Energy 

Corporation office by the field locator of this situation. 
2) The designated person will then have Atmos Energy C01poration personnel 

monitor the excavator that has requested the locate(s) f()r the opportunity to 
visual(v verijj1 that the reference points obtained jhJm the as-built drawing 
used to locate the facility are correct. 

3) Atmos Energy Corporation personnel will then document that the as-built 
facility construction drawings have been revie\t'ed and corrected if necessary. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

25-DPAX-311-PEN 

I, the undersigned, certify that a true copy of the attached Order has been served to the following by means of 

first class mail and electronic service on _________ _ 

Christopher Fry, DAMAGE PREVENTION MANAGER 

ATMOS ENERGY 
25090 W 110TH TERR 
OLATHE, KS 66061 

AHSAN LATIF, LITIGATION COUNSEL 
KANSAS CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1500 SW ARROWHEAD RD 
TOPEKA, KS 66604 
ahsan.latif@ks.gov 

MADISEN HANE, LITIGATION COUNSEL 

KANSAS CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1500SWARROWHEAD RD 
TOPEKA, KS 66604 

madisen.hane@ks.gov 

/S/ KCC Docket Room 
KCC Docket Room 

03/11/2025




